

Minutes of a meeting of the Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday, 19 March 2024 in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford

Commenced 5.00 pm Concluded 7.40 pm

Present - Councillors

LABOUR	CONSERVATIVE	GREEN	LIBERAL DEMOCRAT
K Hussain	Herd	Watson	R Ahmed
Rowe			
Wheatley			
Mitchell			
Steele			

Observers: Councillor Ferriby, Portfolio Holder for Healthy People and Places

Apologies: Councillor Taj Salam

Councillor K Hussain in the Chair

68. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

The following interests were disclosed in the interest of transparency:

- (i) Cllr Watson stated that she worked for a charity involved in hazardous chemicals but not pesticides in relation to Minute No. 72.
- (ii) Cllr Steele stated that he was a member of Menston Parish Council which had a park affected by Glyphosate in relation to Minute No. 72.

69. MINUTES

Resolved -

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 February 2024 be signed as a correct record.

70. REFERRALS TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

There were no referrals to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

71. INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS

There were no appeals submitted by the public to review decisions to restrict documents.

72. REPORT ON THE USE OF GLYPHOSATE FOR WEED CONTROL WITHIN BRADFORD METROPOLITAN DISTRICT COUNCIL

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (**Document "AG"**) presented an update on progress regarding the reduced use of glyphosate for weed control in the district and included information on the trial that involved no use (or exceptional use) in 3 parks in the Shipley ward. The report also included work undertaken to identify areas of highest environmental sensitivity to avoid when spraying in the future and information from other Local Authorities on how they were dealing with the issue in their parks and adopted highway.

The report was summarised by the Shipley Area Co-ordinator and Members were informed of how areas of sensitivity were being identified by Biodiversity Officers. It was noted that one of the largest manufacturers of glyphosate had invested in the development of alternatives.

A Member asked about the mapped areas of sensitivity, specifically whether this included play areas and schools. The Biodiversity Officer explained that the mapped sites did not include schools at this stage but added that it would be possible to add more onto the list to incorporate child exposure to glyphosate.

The Committee asked about signage and if it would be possible to increase signage across the district with information about glyphosate. Officers stated that the cost would need to be considered.

A Member asked about mechanical weeding in relation to weed management and whether this was used by Bradford Council. The Committee were told that Bradford Council had trialled mechanical weeding although did not adopt the method due to the cost and environmental impact, as well as certain areas being unsuitable.

Concern was expressed regarding the lawsuits in America due to health impacts of glyphosate and officers were asked how risks were mitigated. The Committee were informed that robust risk assessments were completed, and that staff were provided with the necessary protective equipment and clothing.

Members sought clarification for what would qualify as exceptional use or exceptional circumstances and officers explained that this could be cobbled areas as alternatives would not be viable.

Officers were asked about the costs of signage and what savings would be made if glyphosate spraying was stopped across the district except in exceptional circumstances and Members were informed that this information could be circulated.

Members discussed the options set out within Document "AG" and it was stated that Option 2 would see an increased reduction of glyphosate usage across the district. Members also noted that the learning from the trial in the Shipley constituency should be carried forward.

Resolved -

- (1) That, following consideration the options set out in Document "AG", that Option 2: All Area constituencies to stop using Glyphosate in all Parks and Cemeteries (except in exceptional use) using strimming as a control measure, in April 2024, be recommended to the Executive for adoption. This would see the adopted highway continue to be weed sprayed but avoiding sensitive areas highlighted in Document "AG".
- (2) That it be further recommended to the Execuitve that clear signs be placed in all relevant areas explaining what the council is doing.
- (3) That officers continue to add areas of high sensitivity to be avoided in the use of glyphosate in particular areas around schools and play parks.
- (4) That officers continue to liaise with other Local Authorities re best practice and experiences in the reduced use of glyphosate.
- (5) That should Option 2 be adopted (as set out in Resolution 1), information be circulated to Area Committee Chairs informing them of the cessation of glyphosate use (except in exceptional use) as detailed in Option 2.

To be actioned by: Strategic Director, Place

73. FLY-TIPPING IN THE BRADFORD DISTRICT

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (**Document "AH"**) provided an update on the work of the Environmental Enforcement Team in relation to fly tipping and other waste related crime. The report was summarised, and the Committee were informed that 4G cameras were being trialled which would improve coverage in rural areas.

Members asked about partnership work and noted the success of the work and intelligence sharing with Calderdale Council to combat fly tipping. The Portfolio Holder for Healthy People and Places added that the enforcement team worked across district borders and detailed the work completed with Leeds City Council.

A Member queried why there had been a reduction in vehicle seizures and

prosecutions and was informed that it was due to a task force reorganisation combined with an increase in Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN's) which were more efficient than taking a case to court.

Officers were asked how decisions were made regarding where cameras would be deployed. It was explained to the Committee that a matrix was used to decide, and consideration was given to the regularity of fly tipping, the amount and type of waste, location, and the ease of installation and maintenance.

A Member questioned whether CCTV from residents could be used for enforcement, and it was confirmed that it was possible to take it as evidence under the Police and Criminal Evidence Act and to try progress enforcement from there. It was added that residents were expected to engage out of civil duty and that residents often engage, and report fly tipping.

Officers were asked if it would be possible to see the data with a focus on wards in order to identify areas of high demand. Officers stated that this could be circulated and that the highest areas of demand were in wards such as City, Bowling and Barkerend, Little Horton and Manningham. Officers detailed the work done in problem areas and highlighted the importance of partnership working to engage with communities and educate people with the aim to reduce fly tipping.

A Member asked why there so few fly tipping cameras in Tong despite demand levels. Officers acknowledged this issue and told the Committee that 4G cameras were being invested in so there would be further expansion with an increase in the number of cameras and that they would be distributed according to demand.

The Committee discussed the concerns expressed by residents in response to the Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC) tip closures. Officers acknowledged the concerns expressed by residents and stated that fly tipping would continue to be monitored. The Portfolio Holder for Healthy People and Places added that it was important for residents to understand that sites were closed due to cuts from central Government which meant services had to be scaled back. It was also stated that residents should continue to use the alternative facilities that were available across the district. Officers added that plans were in place for sites that were to be decommissioned and that CCTV would remain in place temporarily. The Committee were assured that information regarding alternative facilities would be made available to residents and that traffic would be monitored at sites across the district.

Members queried how the Council could work with fast food venues to reduce fly tipping and litter. Officers stated that retailers could sign up to initiatives, litter pick, increase signage and reduce packaging although it was acknowledged this was on a voluntary basis. Members were informed that cameras could also be placed in hotspot areas.

Clarity was sought regarding the powers of the Council to clear up private land. It was explained to the Committee that the situation could vary depending on land ownership, the material that was fly tipped, and the use of the land. Officers stated that they would have conversations and try to cooperate with the landowner, whilst working with colleagues to explore available options.

Resolved -

- (1) That the contents of Document "AH" be noted.
- (2) That a further update be circulated electronically to Members in 12 months' time.

To be actioned by: Strategic Director, Place

74. WASTE & FLEET SERVICES - PERFORMANCE AND CONTRACT REVIEW

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (**Document "AI"**) provided a description of the service provision and all Waste related activities during 2023 and those planned for 2024, to improve the management of waste to more sustainable levels in line with the Waste Strategy (Municipal Waste Minimisation and Management Strategy 2015). The report also included details on the performance of Fleet Services and the "Managed Stores" contract. It was noted that Beauparc had recently acquired Associated Waste Management (AWM) and that the existing contract would be unaffected.

The report was summarised and some of the key information contained within Document "AI" was highlighted mainly that, visit numbers at HWRC sites as well as tonnage received were lower than the previous year; the electric RCV was performing well and outperforming its diesel counterpart; funding had been secured for additional services in the city centre for City of Culture year.

The Committee were informed that there had been a downward trend nationally since Covid in waste being produced due to people spending less time at home. Members were told that the contractor was ahead of contract requirements.

A Member asked about the social value aspect of procurement and what had been added and was informed that there had been work with third sector organisations and litter pick kits had been provided.

It was noted that Waste & Fleet Services had achieved a £2m underspend although officers acknowledged that this could fluctuate due to demand and that trends would continue to be monitored.

A Member queried whether the income the Council receive from waste to be burnt conflicted with the target of reducing waste across the district. Officers explained that the waste hierarchy was followed, and that the Council actively try to reduce waste.

The Committee discussed waste energy carbon emissions and spoke about the possibility of carbon capture. The Committee were informed that plans were in place to explore this option at the Ferrybridge site and that new technologies were constantly explored and considered.

The additional funding secured for City of Culture preparedness was highlighted and the Committee questioned whether plans were in place after City of Culture year. Officers told the Committee that the funding was time sensitive, and that

efficiency would be improved over this time, although further funding may be secured.

The Committee discussed the food waste collection service that would be required to be introduced under new regulations. Officers stated that other local authorities had been consulted to discuss plans for the service. It was highlighted that some of the main issues were associated with cost and contamination. Document "Al" detailed that additional fleet, staff, storage and contracts would be needed with initial estimates showing circa £3.6 needed for vehicles, bins and caddies and around £1.7m per year in operating costs. Members asked if this would be funded by Government and officers confirmed that this was correct.

Resolved -

- (1) That a further progress report be presented to the Committee in December 2024.
- (2) That a site meeting/plant tour be arranged for Members to visit AWM's waste processing plant at Leeds and also the Ferrybridge FM2 waste to energy plant.

To be actioned by: Strategic Director, Place

Chair

Note: These minutes are subject to approval as a correct record at the next meeting of the Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

THESE MINUTES HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER